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Dear Sir/Madam


DECISION

High Speed Rail (London - West Midlands) Act 2017

Schedule 18 - Heritage Agreement Approval
Address: 

Euston Square Gardens

Euston Square

London

NW1 2EF
Proposal:

Insertion of precast L-shaped retaining wall adjacent to eastern wall of underpass. Construction of wall will require excavation approximately 3m below existing ground level to east of eastern end of underpass. Proposed retaining wall is required to relieve existing underpass wall of additional loading from  new carriageway to be constructed as part of interim taxi rank works; application of monitoring targets to eastern parapet wall of underpass. 

	Drawing Nos: 


The Council as the Local Planning Authority & Qualifying Authority within the meaning of the above Act has granted permission subject to the following condition(s) and informative(s) listed below: 

Condition(s) and Reason(s):

	
	


Informative(s):

	1 
	Reasons for approval:

This application has been submitted by HS2 Ltd and seeks approval for the insertion of a precast L-shaped retaining wall adjacent to eastern wall of underpass, together with the installation of monitoring targets to the eastern parapet wall of the grade II listed underpass.

The subterranean underpass is situated below Euston Square Gardens, a designated London Square which is situated close to the northern boundary of the Bloomsbury Conservation Area.  The underpass forms a curtilage structure to the two grade II listed lodges, and it is understood to date from circa 1869.  It has a brick jack arch roof supported by wrought iron I-section beams.  The arched entrances are cut into a dwarf wall of London stock brick with Portland stone coping, but since the 1970s/1980s has been infilled with concrete blocks, with part of the tunnel being used as storage for the nearby Euston Tap PH which is housed in the lodges.

The construction of the retaining wall will require excavation approximately 3 metres below the existing ground level to the east of the eastern end of the underpass. The proposed retaining wall is required to relieve the existing underpass wall from additional loading from the new carriageway to be constructed as part of the interim taxi rank works.  The application also seeks approval for the installation of monitoring prisms to the eastern parapet wall of the underpass, which will be of a reversible nature, comprising prisms fixed into brick mortar joints above the entrance arch.  Corresponding targets will be mounted the retaining wall to measure any potential movement.  The retaining wall will be removed once the taxi rank is no longer in use.

HS2 Ltd entered into a Heritage Agreement dated 5 May 2017 with the London Borough of Camden and Historic England, which requires HS2 Ltd to submit method statements for the proposed works. Part 2 a), b) and c) of Schedule 1C of the Heritage Agreement set out requirements for the content of the method statement for these works.

At the time of submission HS2 Ltd notified Historic England and the national amenity bodies of the submission of the application to Camden as well as copies of the documents. These organisations have six weeks to respond to the Council, which is in line with Section 2.4 of the Heritage Agreement. 

A response was received from Historic England on 21 July 2022, stating that the strengthening of the tunnel is accepted on the basis it will allow for the planned 10 year duration of the interim taxi rank.  The insertion of a foam concrete backfiller is welcomed as it will protect the fabric of the historic tunnel from any potential impacts arising from the construction of the retaining wall.

The Council also notified Bloomsbury CAAC as well as advertising the application by means of a site notice and a press notice.  No response was received from the CAAC, although one response was received from a member of the public which reads, "There is a complete lack of detail in this planning application regarding the clearance of the area prior to the retaining wall being constructed for example how many trees will be affected/removed (especially the trees with protected by preservation orders )? When and where will this information be presented?"  Loss of trees on the site have already been dealt with by HS2 Ltd in agreement with an appointed Tree Panel, which requires a strong and justified case to be made for every tree to felled. HS2 Ltd has an extensive replanting programme including at Euston Square Gardens, with an aspiration to plant more trees than will ever be lost to the scheme.

The scope and content the submitted method statement meets the requirements of Part 2 a), b) and c) of the Heritage Agreement to warrant approval by the Council.




Yours faithfully
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Daniel Pope

Chief Planning Officer
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